
 
 
 

Licensing Sub-Committee 
 
 
 
 
 

Date: Thursday, 29th October, 2020 
Time: 10.00 am 
Venue: Virtual Meeting - Zoom - Public Access via 

YouTube 
https://www.youtube.com/bathnescouncil 

 
 

Councillors: Manda Rigby, Steve Hedges and Sally Davis 
 
Chief Executive and other appropriate officers 
Press and Public 
 

A briefing session for Members will be held at 9.30am. 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Mark Durnford 
Democratic Services 
Lewis House, Manvers Street, Bath, BA1 1JG  
Telephone: 01225 394458 
Web-site - http://www.bathnes.gov.uk  
E-mail: Democratic_Services@bathnes.gov.uk 



 
NOTES: 
1. Inspection of Papers: Papers are available for inspection as follows: 
Council’s website: https://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/ieDocHome.aspx?bcr=1 
 
2. Details of decisions taken at this meeting can be found in the minutes which will be 
circulated with the agenda for the next meeting. In the meantime, details can be obtained by 
contacting as above. 
 
3. Broadcasting at Meetings: - 
The Council will broadcast the images and sounds live via the internet 
https://www.youtube.com/bathnescouncil 
 
The Council may also use the images/sound recordings on its social media site or share with 
other organisations, such as broadcasters. 
 
4. Public Speaking at Meetings 
The Council has a scheme to encourage the public to make their views known at meetings. 
They may make a statement relevant to what the meeting has power to do. They may also 
present a petition or a deputation on behalf of a group. They may also ask a question to which a 
written answer will be given. Advance notice is required not less than two full clear 
working days before the meeting. This means that for meetings held on Thursdays 
notice must be received in Democratic Services by 5.00pm the previous Monday. 
 
Further details of the scheme: 
https://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/ecCatDisplay.aspx?sch=doc&cat=12942 
 
5. Supplementary information for meetings 
Additional information and Protocols and procedures relating to meetings 
https://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/ecCatDisplay.aspx?sch=doc&cat=13505 

https://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/ieDocHome.aspx?bcr=1
https://www.youtube.com/bathnescouncil
https://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/ecCatDisplay.aspx?sch=doc&cat=12942
https://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/ecCatDisplay.aspx?sch=doc&cat=13505


 

 

Licensing Sub-Committee - Thursday, 29th October, 2020 
 

at 10.00 am in the Virtual Meeting - Zoom - Public Access via YouTube 
https://www.youtube.com/bathnescouncil 

 
A G E N D A 

 

1.   WELCOME & INTRODUCTIONS  

2.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS  

3.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 At this point in the meeting declarations of interest are received from Members in any 
of the agenda items under consideration at the meeting. Members are asked to 
indicate: 

(a) The agenda item number in which they have an interest to declare. 

(b) The nature of their interest. 

(c) Whether their interest is a disclosable pecuniary interest or an other interest,   
(as defined in Part 2, A and B of the Code of Conduct and Rules for Registration of 
Interests) 

Any Member who needs to clarify any matters relating to the declaration of interests is 
recommended to seek advice from the Council’s Monitoring Officer or a member of his 
staff before the meeting to expedite dealing with the item during the meeting. 

4.   TO ANNOUNCE ANY URGENT BUSINESS AGREED BY THE CHAIR  

5.   MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING - 15TH OCTOBER 2020 (Pages 7 - 14) 

6.   TAXI PROCEDURE (Pages 15 - 18) 

 The Chair will, if required, explain the licensing procedure. 
 

7.   EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC  

 The Sub-Committee is asked to consider passing the following resolution:  
 

“the Sub-Committee having been satisfied that the public interest would be 
better served by not disclosing relevant information, in accordance with the 
provisions of Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, RESOLVES 
that the public shall be excluded from the meeting for the following item(s) of 
business and the reporting of the meeting be prevented under Section 
100A(5A), because of the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in 
paragraphs 1 and 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act, as amended.  
   

8.   CONSIDERATION OF FIT AND PROPER - 1900924TAXI (Pages 19 - 42) 



9.   CONSIDERATION OF FIT AND PROPER - 19/01848/TAXI (Pages 43 - 88) 

 
The Committee Administrator for this meeting is Mark Durnford who can be contacted on  
01225 394458. 
 



 
15 

Licensing Sub-Committee- Thursday, 15th October, 2020 

 

BATH AND NORTH EAST SOMERSET 
 
LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 
 
Thursday, 15th October, 2020 

 
Present:- Councillors Manda Rigby (Chair), Sally Davis and Steve Hedges 
 
Also in attendance: John Dowding (Lead Licensing Officer), Shaine Lewis (Team Leader, 
Legal Services) and Michael Dando (Senior Public Protection Officer) 
 

 
22    WELCOME & INTRODUCTIONS  

 
The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting and introduced the other members of 
the Sub-Committee and the officers who were present. 
 

23    APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS  
 
There were none. 
 

24    DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
Councillor Sally Davis said she had been present at a previous meeting of Full 
Council where the driver, who is the subject of today’s hearing had made a 
statement. 
 
Councillor Steve Hedges said that he was also present at the Council meeting and 
had met the driver on one other occasion for a general discussion regarding taxis. 
 
Councillor Manda Rigby said that she too was present at the Council meeting and 
had also had one subsequent meeting with the driver and that there had been no 
predetermination and would be dealt with on its merits. 
 

25    TO ANNOUNCE ANY URGENT BUSINESS AGREED BY THE CHAIR  
 
There was none. 
 

26    MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING - 24TH SEPTEMBER 2020  
 
The Sub-Committee approved the minutes of 24th September 2020 as a correct 
record. 
 

27    TAXI PROCEDURE  
 
The Chair explained the procedure for the meeting to all parties who were present.  
 
The parties confirmed that they understood the procedure to be followed for the 
hearing. 
 
 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 5



 

 
16 

Licensing Sub-Committee- Thursday, 15th October, 2020 

 

28    EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC  
 
The members of the Sub-Committee agreed that they were satisfied that the public 
interest would be better served by not disclosing relevant information, in accordance 
with the provisions of Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972. They  
RESOLVED that the public should be excluded from the meeting for the following 
item(s) of business and the reporting of the meeting be prevented under Section 
100A(5A), because of the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in 
paragraphs 1 and 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act, as amended. 
 

29    CONSIDERATION OF FIT AND PROPER - 1902441TAXI  
 
The Lead Licensing Officer presented the report to the Sub-Committee. He 
explained that the report invited the Members to consider whether the driver before 
them remains fit and proper to hold a combined Hackney Carriage/Private Hire 
Drivers licence issued by the authority. 
 
He stated that the Sub-Committee is asked to consider the matter, determine the 
issue and take any action it may consider suitable after hearing any representation 
from the driver or any representative acting on his behalf. 
 
He showed the Sub-Committee a video of the driver acting in an obstructive manner 
when other vehicles were attempting to pass his stationary vehicle. 
 
The driver’s representative addressed the Sub-Committee. He said that the driver 
has dyslexia and that when he was informed that his vehicle had failed both the 
Compliance Test and MOT test on the 22nd October 2019 he was confused as he 
had only taken the vehicle to Bathwick Tyres for a pre-MOT check on 18th October 
2019. 
 
The driver’s representative said that on 22nd October 2019 when the driver was on 
his way to the Test Centre he had hit a loose manhole cover and reported the matter 
via Fix My Street. He added that the driver did call Russell’s of Bath a Private Hire 
Operator to request that someone cover his school run that afternoon. 
 
He informed the Sub-Committee that new tyres had been fitted to the driver’s vehicle 
on 23rd October 2019, but that he had not been informed by the Test Centre to not 
drive the vehicle due to the MOT failure and was not aware that the guidance had 
changed that meant that failure of an MOT test cancels the previous one held, even 
if the previous test had remaining days on it. 
 
He stated that the vehicle was re-tested on the 29th October 2019 and subsequently 
passed the Compliance Test and MOT test. 
 
Councillor Steve Hedges asked even if he believed that he could drive the vehicle on 
the merit of the old MOT certificate, why would he drive it with a serious defect and 
carry members of the public. 
 
The driver replied that he had the new tyres fitted on the morning of 23rd October and 
that at that time he had not driven the vehicle with any passengers inside it. He 
added that he genuinely believed that he was still able to drive the vehicle as the 

Page 6



 

 
17 

Licensing Sub-Committee- Thursday, 15th October, 2020 

 

previous MOT was in place until 14th November and that he didn’t knowingly drive 
with the serious defect. 
 
Councillor Davis commented that she was concerned that he was not aware of the 
MOT rule change. 
 
The Chair asked if any evidence could be provided that he had hit the manhole cover 
on 22nd October as stated and that it had been reported via Fix My Street. 
 
The driver replied that he could not provide evidence to the Sub-Committee but 
stated that it was situated outside the new tattoo shop on the Upper Bristol Road, 
Bath and that he had previously reported it in late September 2019. 
 
The Chair asked if he could explain the reason for his behaviour shown in the video. 
 
The driver replied that the person taking the video was another licensed driver that 
was parked in a resident only spot on the street that he lived and said that he 
overreacted to the situation. 
 
The Chair asked if he felt that his reaction was fit and proper behaviour and what he 
would do now if a similar incident occurred. 
 
The driver replied that he would ignore future incidents. 
 
The Lead Licensing Officer asked if when the fail sheet was issued on October 22nd 
did he repair the vehicle immediately and then return to work. 
 
The driver replied that returned to work the next evening, October 23rd. 
 
The Lead Licensing Officer asked the driver to confirm whether it was only the tyres 
of his vehicle that had been replaced before he returned to work on October 23rd. 
 
The driver replied that the parts had been ordered for the defects that had been 
reported and that the tyres and the bearings had been fitted and replaced before he 
returned to work on October 23rd. 
 
The Chair asked if he would like to comment on any further incidents that had been 
reported. 
 
The driver replied that he was driving in the bus lane on the London Road where 
another vehicle swerved in his direction on two occasions. He said that he 
responded to this by simply making a shrugging gesture to question “What are you 
doing?”. 
 
The Chair asked if he could comment further on the breach of conditions relating to 
the failure to display the required vehicle licence identification plate. 
 
The driver replied that this on his way to carry out a school run there had been no 
signage on top of his vehicle but said that that was because he had not officially 
started work until he had picked up the passenger. He added that signs are now on 
his vehicle at all times. 

Page 7



 

 
18 

Licensing Sub-Committee- Thursday, 15th October, 2020 

 

 
He explained that due to having varying sizes of Velcro strips available to him he had 
on occasion displayed the plates from inside his vehicle through the window. He said 
that on one occasion the Lead Licensing Officer had passed him on the way to work 
travelling in the opposite direction and had observed that the plates were not 
displayed correctly. 
 
The Lead Licensing Officer commented that he had also observed the identification 
plates being displayed incorrectly whilst being a pedestrian. 
 
The Chair asked if he could give evidence so that the members of the Sub-
Committee would be comfortable to allow friends and family members in a vehicle 
with him. 
 
The driver replied that he does all he can to make his car safe and that he had been 
commended on his school runs. He added that he regularly checks the tyres on his 
vehicle and that it had just passed a further MOT on Monday with no advisories. 
 
He stated that he has disposable masks available in his vehicle due to Covid-19 and 
anti-bacterial hand gel. 
 
He said that he genuinely had not been aware of the MOT rule change meaning that 
he should not have been driving his vehicle after it had failed and had discussed the 
matter with four other senior drivers who were also not aware. 
 
He informed the Sub-Committee that being a licensed driver gave him the ability to 
carry out charity and volunteering work. 
 
The Chair asked for further information on the driver’s social media conduct. 
 
The Lead Licensing Officer said that the driver had written derogatory comments on 
his closed Facebook group and had used foul language to describe a driver who had 
made a genuine mistake driving his car down a newly developed set of steps.  He 
said that a complaint had been received regarding the language used to describe the 
other driver. 
 
He added that the other complaint generated from social media involved a post that 
was related to Uber with a thread involving a question from a someone in Canada 
who enquired why there are problems with Uber drivers in the UK,   the driver 
responded “Muslims”. 
 
He said that this was brought to the attention of the licensing officer by a Muslim 
driver who felt it was Islamophobic in nature. 
 
The Chair asked how the driver’s behaviour compared to that of other licensed 
drivers. 
 
The Lead Licensing Officer said that the driver had committed a number of offences 
over a period of time and that these included aggressive behaviour and inappropriate 
comments on social media. He added that he felt that a structured email process had 

Page 8



 

 
19 

Licensing Sub-Committee- Thursday, 15th October, 2020 

 

been carried regarding the incidents raised and that he would expect any licensed 
driver to reply in a timely fashion. 
 
The Chair asked if the Licensing department were aware of the driver’s dyslexia. 
 
The Lead Licensing Officer said that he recalled that it had been mentioned briefly 
previously and that support had been offered to the driver. 
 
The Chair asked for any closing statements to be made. 
 
The Lead Licensing Officer said that the information supplied in the report was 
accurate and should stand on its own merits. 
 
The driver’s representative reiterated that the driver had no idea that the MOT rule 
had changed which meant that once the vehicle had been issued with a failure notice 
he was unable to drive the vehicle despite the previous notice being in place in terms 
of date. 
 
He said that the driver had worked on many forums with the Council and carried out 
local volunteer and charity work, including the delivery of food parcels as a result of 
lockdown due to Covid-19. 
 
He stated that he would be happy to let a family member travel with the driver. 
 
The driver stated that he would never knowingly do anything wrong and that he 
frequently checks the tyres on his vehicle and has it regularly serviced. He added 
that the vehicle was Covid-19 compliant. 
 
He said that being a licensed driver gave him the flexibility to undertake community 
work and work for local charities. 
 
Following an adjournment, the Sub-Committee RESOLVED that the combined 
Hackney Carriage/Private Hire Drivers licence of the driver concerned be revoked. 
 
Reasons 
 
Members have had to consider whether a Licensee remains fit and proper to hold a 
combined Hackney Carriage/Private Hire Driver’s licence. In doing so Members took 
account of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976, Human 
Rights Act 1998, case law and the Council’s Policy.  
 
Whilst reminding themselves that each case is taken on its merits Members are 
aware that the character of a person does not change when they become a licensed 
driver and further, that the whole of a person’s character is of relevance and that the 
economic impact of the decision on the Licensee is irrelevant as their primary 
concern is public protection. Members, therefore, took account of the licensee’s 
representations, the representations from his representative and balanced these 
representations against the information contained in the report before them. In 
making their decision, however, Members asked themselves the following question; 
would they, as members of the Licensing Sub Committee, allow their friends, family, 

Page 9



 

 
20 

Licensing Sub-Committee- Thursday, 15th October, 2020 

 

loved ones or any other person for whom they care to travel alone in a vehicle driven 
by this person?  
 
With regards to the Licensee’s responsibility to keep his vehicle safe Members found 
the following. In May 2019 the vehicle was presented for a Council Compliance test 
when a front suspension fault and two (2) rear tyres with exposed cords were 
recorded. Further, on 30 October 2019, when the vehicle was presented to renew its 
vehicle licence, the documentation disclosed that whilst the vehicle had passed the 
Compliance and MOT tests it had failed both tests on 22 October 2019. The MOT 
failure recorded several defects including 3 Major (repair immediately) and 1 
Dangerous (do not drive until repaired) with the Major defects being; engine MIL 
inoperative or indicates a malfunction; offside rear wheel bearing has excessive play; 
nearside rear lower suspension arm pin or bush excessively worn and the 
Dangerous Defect being an offside rear tyre with its ply or cords exposed inner edge. 
Major and Dangerous defects are both MOT failures. 
  
Members noted that the Licensing Officer wrote to the Licensee seeking an 
explanation as to how the vehicle had failed two (2) Council inspections and an MOT 
test within months. These failures were despite the Licensee being reminded of his 
responsibilities and the Dangerous defects being such that should have been 
identified on any visual inspection. In response to this request the Licensee stated 
his vehicle is serviced more regularly than the manufacturer suggests, he carries out 
daily visual checks and, in any event, the existing MOT did not expire until 14 
November 2019. With regards to the MOT Certificate, and whilst taking a dim view of 
this response, Members noted that ignorance of the fact Dangerous defects cancel 
out an MOT and that a discrepancy of 1 mile gave rise to a concern that the vehicle 
had been driven whilst defective. Accordingly, Members found it reasonable for the 
Licensing Officer to investigate this discrepancy.  
 
Members noted the investigation found the Licensee had potentially used a defective 
Private Hire Vehicle between 22 and 29 October 2019. In particular, the vehicle was 
used for 5 journeys between Bath and Bristol between 23 and 29 October and used 
for home to school contract work between the afternoon of 23 October and 25 
October 2019. Accordingly, and in the absence of evidence indicating the Major 
defects had been resolved, further explanation was sought from the Licensee. 
Members, however noted, that whilst invoices were provided for the purchase of 
several parts no explanation, evidence or receipt was provided establishing when the 
Major defects were in fact rectified. Instead, however, the Licensee responded that 
he had paid cash, all defects had been resolved and by email that he had nothing 
further to add.  
 
In terms of the Licensee’s responsibilities Members found the following. Members 
found it extraordinary that the daily visual checks the Licensee said he had carried 
out had not revealed, over a period of time, that the vehicle’s tyres were deteriorating 
and that three (3) of them on two (2) separate occasions had become so 
dangerously worn that the cord was exposed.  
 
Accordingly, Members do not believe that these visual checks were carried out as 
the Licensee had claimed. Moreover, Members heard nothing to suggest the Private 
Hire Operators’ records were inaccurate or that the Major defects had, as a matter of 
fact, been rectified in the timescale suggested by the Licensee. Members therefore 

Page 10



 

 
21 

Licensing Sub-Committee- Thursday, 15th October, 2020 

 

found on the balance of probabilities that the vehicle was used with Major defects to 
carry the pubic and that this was extremely irresponsible. Members therefore 
concluded that the Licensee needlessly put himself, the public and other road users 
at risk of serious harm and together with his delay and ultimate refusal to comply 
with the Licensing Officer’s request find his conduct not that to be expected from a 
BANES licensed driver. 
 
Members were disappointed to note several conduct issues had arisen since the 
grant of the licence. These included breaches of Licensing Conditions and 
aggressive conduct matters which have variously been dealt with by verbal advice 
and or Penalty Points in accordance with the Council Policy. There was also, 
however, a complaint of bullying on social media and the Licensee acknowledged 
that he used foul language on his website in describing fellow Licensed driver. In 
terms of the Licensee’s social media Members further noted an extremely distasteful 
thread which appeared to classify Uber drivers as Muslim who should be banned 
from Bath. Whilst noting the Licensee’s conduct had been dealt with by way of a 
warning letter Members found this conduct inappropriate, bullying and Islamophobic. 
 
In determining this matter Members remind themselves of the considerable risks 
associated with unsuitable people holding a licence and that licences come with 
significant responsibility. In terms of risks these not only include Licensees putting 
passengers at risk, but also other road users should mechanically defective vehicles 
be used. Further, and in terms of responsibilities, all Licensees have the 
responsibility to ensure their conduct does not undermine public confidence in the 
licensing regime. Accordingly, Members reminded themselves that a Licensee’s 
overriding concern must be the welfare of the public and that the Licensee must act 
accordingly.  
 
In all the circumstances Members found over time the Licensee’s conduct was such 
that he had left the Licensing Officer with no alternative other than to refer his 
conduct to the Licensing Sub Committee for a determination as to whether he 
remains fit and proper. Members, whilst noting the good works the Licensee had 
done in the community, nevertheless focused on his actions as a Licensee and that 
the safety of the public was the primary focus of the meeting. In considering the 
matters this morning Members did not find the Licensee’s accounts credible, 
consistent or compelling but rather found they served to frustrate the administration 
and enforcement of the Licensing regime. Further, not only did he recklessly 
endanger the safety of the travelling public, his conduct at times was provocative, 
aggressive and he allowed language to be published that was foul, distasteful and 
Islamophobic if not borderline racist. Accordingly, Members took an extremely dim 
view of this behaviour which is certainly not that expected from any BANES licensed 
driver. 
 
Accordingly, and in answer to the question whether they would allow their friends, 
family, loved ones and indeed all members of the community to travel alone in a 
vehicle driven by this person? On the balance of probabilities Members’ answer to 
the question was no.  
 
Members did, however, consider suspending the licence to give the Licensee an 
opportunity to reflect on his conduct and change his behaviour. In all the 
circumstances, however, they found the Licensee’s course of conduct and 

Page 11



 

 
22 

Licensing Sub-Committee- Thursday, 15th October, 2020 

 

engagement with the Licensing Authority such that it demonstrated a suspension 
would not serve to change his behaviour and therefore the licence is revoked. 
 
 
 

The meeting ended at 12.00 pm  
 

Chair(person)  

 
Date Confirmed and Signed  

 
Prepared by Democratic Services 

Page 12



Licensing Sub Committee 
Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Drivers 

 Complaint Hearing Procedure  
 
 

1. The Chair will introduce Members of the Committee, introduce the Officers 
present, explain the procedure to be followed and ensure those present have 
received and understood that procedure. 

 
2. The Licensing Officer will outline the nature of the matter to be considered by 

the Committee. 
 

3. The Complainant presents their case, may call witnesses and may be 
questioned by the Committee and other parties.  Where a written complaint 
has been made the complaint will be read by the Committee.  The procedure 
will be repeated should there be more than one complainant. 

 
4. The Licensee presents their case, may call witnesses and may be questioned 

by the Committee and other parties. 
 
5. The Chair will ask the Licensing Officers present whether they wish to 

comment.  An Officer making comment may be asked questions. 
 
6. The Complainant is invited to make a closing statement 

 
7. The Licensee is invited to make a closing statement. 

 
8. The Chair will invite the Committee to move into private session to enable the 

Members to deliberate in private.  The Committee will reconvene publicly if 
clarification of evidence is required and/or legal advice is required.  The 
Committee may retire to a private room, or alternatively require vacation of the 
meeting room by all other persons. 

 
9. Whilst in deliberation the Committee will be accompanied by Legal and 

Democratic Services Officers for the purpose of assisting them in drafting their 
reasoning for the decision. 

 
10. The Committee will reconvene the meeting and the Chair will announce the 

Committee’s decision with reasons and advise that the decision will be 
released in writing within the statutory time limits. 

 
 
 
Updated November 2013 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 13

Agenda Item 6



PLEASE NOTE: 
 

• Where the Committee considers it necessary the procedure may be varied. 
 

• In circumstances where a party fails to attend the Committee will consider 
whether to proceed in absence or defer to the next meeting. Should a matter be 
deferred the deferral notice will state that the matter may proceed in a party’s 
absence on the next occasion. In deciding whether to proceed all notices, 
communications and representations will be considered. 

 

• Only in exceptional circumstances will the Committee take account of 
additional late documentary or other information and will be at the discretion of 
the Chair and on notice to all the other parties.  No new representations will be 
allowed at the hearing. 

 

• The Committee will disregard all information or representations considered 
irrelevant. 

 

• The hearing will take the form of a discussion. The Committee will allow parties 
to the proceedings to ask questions. Formal cross examination will be 
discouraged and, should they be necessary, supplementary questions allowed 
for clarification purposes only. 

 

• Parties will have an equal amount of time to present their cases. Whilst time 
limits are at the Chair’s discretion, in the interests of cost and efficiency, 
presentations will not normally exceed twenty minutes to include summarising 
the case. Time limits will not include the time taken for questions.  

 
N.B. 
1.  Where there is more than one party making relevant representations the 

time allocated will be split between those parties. 
2. Where several parties are making the same or similar representations it is 

suggested that one representative is appointed to avoid duplication and to 
make the most efficient use of the allocated time.  

3. Where an objection is made by an association or local residents group, a 
duly authorised person – as notified to the Licensing authority – may 
speak on behalf of that association or local residents group.  

 

• The Chair may request that persons behaving in a disruptive manner should 
leave the hearing and their return refused, or allowed subject to conditions.  An 
excluded person is however, entitled to submit the information they would have 
been entitled to present had they not been excluded. 

 

• Bath & North East Somerset Council is committed to taking decisions in an 
honest, accountable and transparent fashion. On occasion however, it may be 
necessary to exclude members of the press and public pursuant to the Local 
Government Act 1972 Schedule 12 (a). In those circumstances reasons for such 
decisions will be given. 
 

• If a person has special needs regarding access, hearing or vision, this should be 
brought to the Licensing Authority’s attention prior to the hearing so that 
reasonable adjustments may be made.  

Page 14



LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE  
HACKNEY CARRIAGE (TAXI) AND 

PRIVATE HIRE VEHICLES COMPLAINT PROCEDURE 
 

 

Chair confirms all parties have 
received and understood procedure 

 

Meeting reconvened in public and Chair 
announces decision. Reasons given 
and parties advised decision will be 

confirmed in writing. 
 

Committee moves to private session to  
determine matter. 

 

Licensee makes closing statement 

Complainant makes closing statement. 
 

Licensing Officer invited to comment. 
Officer may be questioned. 

Licensee presents case and may call 
witnesses. Questions may be asked by 
Members and other parties. 
 

Complainant presents case and may 
call witnesses. Questions may be 
asked by Members and other parties 
witnesses 

If Complainant/Licensee not present 
Committee decides whether to proceed 

or defer on notice 

Chair introduces Members and Officers 
present 

Licensing Officer introduces report 
 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 16



 

Page 1 of 2 

 
Access to Information Arrangements 

 
Exclusion of access by the public to Council meetings 

 
 
Information Compliance Ref: LGA 901/20 
 
Meeting / Decision: Licensing Sub-Committee 
 
Date: 29th October 2020 
 
Author: John Dowding 
 
Exempt Report Title: Consideration of Fit and Proper  
 
Exempt Appendix Title(s):  
 
Exempt Annex A- Current Licence 
Exempt Annex B- Standard Letter May 2018 
Exempt Annex C – Standard Letter May 2019 
Exempt Annex D – Email May 2020 
Exempt Annex E – Operator, Vehicle and Driver Standards Policy. 
 
The Report contains exempt information, according to the categories set out 
in the Local Government Act 1972 (amended Schedule 12A). The relevant 
exemption is set out below. 
 

 
The public interest test has been applied, and it is concluded that the public 
interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in 
disclosure at this time. It is therefore recommended that the Report and 
appendices be withheld from publication on the Council website. The 
paragraphs below set out the relevant public interest issues in this case. 
 
PUBLIC INTEREST TEST 
If the sub-Committee wishes to consider a matter with press and public 
excluded, it must be satisfied on two matters. 
 

Stating the exemption: 
1. Information relating to any individual 
2. Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual 
3. Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular 
person (including the authority holding that information) 

Page 17

Agenda Item 8



 

Page 2 of 2 

Firstly, it must be satisfied that the information likely to be disclosed falls 
within one of the accepted categories of exempt information under the Local 
Government Act 1972.  The officer responsible for this item believes that this 
information falls within the following exemptions and this has been confirmed 
by the Council’s Information Compliance Manager.  
 
The following exemptions are engaged in respect to this report: 

1. Information relating to any individual 
2. Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual 
3. Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any 

particular person (including the authority holding that information) 
 
Exemptions 1 and 2 above must be considered in conjunction with the 
Principles of the Data Protection Act 2018 (DPA). It is considered that 
disclosure of the information in this report would breach the first principle of 
the DPA, which requires personal data to be fairly and lawfully processed. 
Further, as any information revealed by the Disclosure and Barring Service 
(DBS) is likely to constitute sensitive personal data in terms of the DPA, this 
information cannot be disclosed by the Council without the explicit consent of 
the individual concerned. 
 
Secondly, it is necessary to weigh up the arguments for and against 
disclosure on public interest grounds.  It is considered that there is a public 
interest in information about individuals applying for taxi licences in the area, 
and in particular, information as to the backgrounds of those individuals.  
 
Other factors in favour of disclosure include:  

• furthering public understanding of the issues involved; 
• furthering public participation in the public debate of issues, in that 

disclosure would allow a more informed debate; 
• promoting accountability and transparency by the Council for the 

decisions it takes; 
• allowing individuals and companies to understand decisions made by 

the Council affecting their lives and assist individuals to challenge 
those decisions. 

 
However there is a real risk that the first Principle of the DPA will be 
breached by this disclosure, and that the individual/s concerned could bring 
a successful action against the Council if the disclosure occurred. Therefore 
it is recommended that exemptions 1 and 2 in Schedule 12A stand.  The 
Council considers that the public interest is in favour of not holding this 
matter in open session at this time and that any reporting on the meeting is 
prevented in accordance with Section 100A(5A) 
 
Due to the factors outlined above, further consideration has not been given to 
the application of exemption 3 of Schedule 12A.  
 

Page 18



Document is Restricted

Page 19

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Page 1 of 2 

 
Access to Information Arrangements 

 
Exclusion of access by the public to Council meetings 

 
 
Information Compliance Ref: LGA 950/20 
Meeting / Decision: Licensing Sub-Committee 

Date: Thursday 29th October 2020 
Author: John Dowding 
Exempt Report Title: Consideration of Fit and Proper -  
 
Exempt Appendix Title(s):  
Exempt Annex A- Current Licence 
Exempt Annex B- Complaint  
Exempt Annex C – Complaint  
Exempt Annex D – Complaint  
Exempt Annex E – Complaint  
Exempt Annex F – Complaint  
Exempt Annex G – Previous Matters 
Exempt Annex H – Current Policy On Hackney Carriage and Private Hire 
Licensing Standards for Drivers ,Vehicles & Operators 
 
The Report contains exempt information, according to the categories set out 
in the Local Government Act 1972 (amended Schedule 12A). The relevant 
exemption is set out below. 

 
The public interest test has been applied, and it is concluded that the public 
interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in 
disclosure at this time. It is therefore recommended that the Report and 
appendices be withheld from publication on the Council website. The 
paragraphs below set out the relevant public interest issues in this case. 
 
PUBLIC INTEREST TEST 
If the sub-Committee wishes to consider a matter with press and public 
excluded, it must be satisfied on two matters. 
 

Stating the exemption: 
1. Information relating to any individual 
2. Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual 
3. Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular 
person (including the authority holding that information) 

Page 41

Agenda Item 9



 

Page 2 of 2 

Firstly, it must be satisfied that the information likely to be disclosed falls 
within one of the accepted categories of exempt information under the Local 
Government Act 1972.  The officer responsible for this item believes that this 
information falls within the following exemptions and this has been confirmed 
by the Council’s Information Compliance Manager.  
 
The following exemptions are engaged in respect to this report: 

1. Information relating to any individual 
2. Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual 
3. Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any 

particular person (including the authority holding that information) 
 
Exemptions 1 and 2 above must be considered in conjunction with the 
Principles of the Data Protection Act 2018 (DPA). It is considered that 
disclosure of the information in this report would breach the first principle of 
the DPA, which requires personal data to be fairly and lawfully processed. 
Further, as any information revealed by the Disclosure and Barring Service 
(DBS) is likely to constitute sensitive personal data in terms of the DPA, this 
information cannot be disclosed by the Council without the explicit consent of 
the individual concerned. 
 
Secondly, it is necessary to weigh up the arguments for and against 
disclosure on public interest grounds.  It is considered that there is a public 
interest in information about individuals applying for taxi licences in the area, 
and in particular, information as to the backgrounds of those individuals.  
 
Other factors in favour of disclosure include:  
 

• furthering public understanding of the issues involved; 
• furthering public participation in the public debate of issues, in that 

disclosure would allow a more informed debate; 
• promoting accountability and transparency by the Council for the 

decisions it takes; 
• allowing individuals and companies to understand decisions made by 

the Council affecting their lives and assist individuals to challenge 
those decisions. 

 
However there is a real risk that the first Principle of the DPA will be 
breached by this disclosure, and that the individual/s concerned could bring 
a successful action against the Council if the disclosure occurred. Therefore 
it is recommended that exemptions 1 and 2 in Schedule 12A stand.  The 
Council considers that the public interest is in favour of not holding this 
matter in open session at this time and that any reporting on the meeting is 
prevented in accordance with Section 100A(5A) 
 
Due to the factors outlined above, further consideration has not been given to 
the application of exemption 3 of Schedule 12A.  
 

Page 42



Document is Restricted

Page 43

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	5 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING - 15TH OCTOBER 2020
	6 TAXI PROCEDURE
	HCPHV Complaint Flow Chart

	8 Consideration of Fit and Proper - 1900924TAXI
	REPORT 1900924TAXI  FP

	9 Consideration of Fit and Proper - 19/01848/TAXI
	REPORT 1901848TAXI FP


